

11/22/98

BAR; emb

Sponsor: Greg Nickels

Proposed No.: 98-639

ORDINANCE NO. **13336**

AN ORDINANCE relating to changes to current fees charged for the use of King County parks and recreation facilities; amending Ordinance 5225, Section 2(A), as amended, and K.C.C. 7.08.020, Ordinance 9227, Section 1 (part), as amended, and K.C.C. 7.08.025, Ordinance 5225, Section 2(B), as amended, and K.C.C. 7.08.030 and Ordinance 6027, Sections 2 and 3, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.08.040

SECTION 1. A. Section 2 of this ordinance proposes changes in the fees currently charged for swimming pool facilities.

B. These fees are assessed pursuant to K.C.C. chapter 2.99 and K.C.C. 2.99.010, which grant authority of county agencies to establish county policies and procedures to set, charge and collect fees.

C. Adjustments to the current fee charges and the new fees for special use permits for King County recreational facilities are warranted due to increased demand, more frequent maintenance demands and general inflationary trends.

SECTION 2. Ordinance. 5225, Section 2(A), as amended, and K.C.C. 7.08.020 are hereby amended to read as follows:

**Swimming pool facilities** (~~(((except Weyerhaeuser King County Aquatics Center)))~~). Swimming pool facilities fees shall be:

1 A. Swimming pool fees (fees include sales tax):

2 ((Public swims: ..... \$1.40 per person per session

3 ~~Seventy five cent swims ..... 75 per person per session~~

4 ~~Adult Only Swims ..... 2.25 per person per session~~

5 ~~Senior citizens 60 years plus ..... \$1.40 per person for any~~

6 ~~..... program session))\$0.75~~

7 - 3.00, depending on the type of program and the patron's age, monthly and annual

8 packages may be offered not to exceed these unit rates.

B. Swim lessons: \$(~~2.00~~)2.25 per half hour to \$(~~10.00~~)15.00 per person,  
depending on the size of the class, per half hour.

C. Pool rentals:

((1. ~~Private rentals~~

~~..... 25 persons or less ..... \$43.00 per hour~~

~~..... 26 - 60 persons ..... 60.00 per hour~~

~~..... 61 - 90 persons ..... 80.00 per hour~~

~~..... 91 - 120 persons ..... 95.00 per hour~~

~~..... 121 - 150 persons ..... 120.00 per hour~~

~~..... 2. Special interest groups ..... 36.00 per hour~~

~~..... 3. School districts ..... 23.00 per hour~~

~~..... 4. King County Park Swim Teams~~

~~..... When sharing the pool ..... 19.50 per hour~~

~~..... When using the entire pool ..... 30.00 per hour~~

~~D. Family membership program. (Entitles member to all public swims and adults to all adult swims, including the Recreational Pool in the King County Aquatic Center);~~

~~1. Three Months~~

<del>Youth 17 years or younger .....</del>	<del>\$ 41.75 plus sales tax</del>
<del>Adults, 18 years or older .....</del>	<del>74.25 plus sales tax</del>
<del>Family, 2 or more .....</del>	<del>110.00 plus sales tax</del>
<del>Senior citizens, 60 years or older .....</del>	<del>46.20 plus sales tax</del>

~~2. Yearly~~

<del>Youth, 17 years or younger .....</del>	<del>110.00 plus sales tax</del>
<del>Adults, 18 years or older .....</del>	<del>180.00 plus sales tax</del>
<del>Family, 2 or more .....</del>	<del>300.00 plus sales tax</del>
<del>Senior citizens, 60 years or older .....</del>	<del>83.50 plus sales tax))</del>

~~E.))      Group rates .....      \$22.00 - 152.00 per  
hour, depending on the  
size of the group and  
the number of staff  
required~~

Team training fees .....      \$3.50 - 10.00 per lane,  
per hour, depending  
on course length

D. Locker ((F))fees .....      \$0.25 per locker

1      ~~((F. Individuals with physical or developmental disabilities shall receive the same~~  
2      ~~rate as senior citizens.~~

1 ~~G. Individuals with physical or developmental disabilities shall provide~~  
2 ~~documented proof of disability to qualify for reduced fees.~~

3 ~~H. Individual youths, 17 years or younger, who can document their eligibility for~~  
4 ~~free or reduced price school meals as established by the U.S. Department of Agriculture~~  
5 ~~and thereafter revised shall qualify for free or reduced fee public swims.~~

6 ~~I. Admission and/or concession fees - 10% of gross income.~~

7 ~~J. Special admission fees - Fees to be determined by department director for special~~  
8 ~~programs and promotions.))~~

9 E. Fee waivers: the department director or the director's designee may waive or  
10 reduce any fees under this section.

11 SECTION 3. A. Section 4 of this ordinance proposes changes in the fees currently  
12 charged for the Weyerhaeuser King County aquatic center.

13 B. These fees are assessed pursuant to K.C.C. chapter 2.99 and K.C.C. 2.99.010,  
14 which grant authority of county agencies to establish county policies and procedures to set,  
15 charge and collect fees.

16 C. Adjustments to the current fee charges for King County recreational facilities  
17 are warranted due to increased demand, more frequent maintenance demands and general  
18 inflationary trends.

19 SECTION 4. Ordinance 9227, Section 1 (part), as amended, and K.C.C. 7.08.025 are  
20 hereby amended to read as follows:

21 **Weyerhaeuser King County ((A))aquatic ((C))center.**

22 A. ((Swimming pool fees (fees include sales tax):

# 13336

1

~~1. Competitive Pool and Dive Tank~~

~~Open Swim ..... \$2.25 per person per session~~

~~Senior citizens, 60 years or older ..... 1.40 per person per session~~

~~2. Instruction Pool~~

~~Public Swims ..... \$1.40 per person per session~~

~~Adult Only Swims, 18 years or older ..... 2.25 per person per session~~

~~Senior Citizens, 60 years or older ..... 1.40 per person per session~~

~~Promotional Swim ..... \$0.75 per person per session~~

2

~~B. Swimming Lessons: \$2.00 per half hour to \$10.00 per half hour~~

~~C. Pool Rentals:~~

~~1. Private Rentals~~

~~Competitive Pool/~~

~~Instruction Pool~~

~~Dive Tank~~

~~25 persons or less ..... \$ 58.00 per hour ..... \$ 43.00 per hour~~

~~26-60 persons ..... 74.00 per hour ..... 60.00 per hour~~

~~61-90 persons ..... 93.00 per hour ..... 80.00 per hour~~

~~91-120 persons ..... 109.00 per hour ..... 95.00 per hour~~

~~121-150 persons ..... 133.00 per hour ..... 120.00 per hour~~

~~2. Special Interest Groups ..... 49.50 per hour ..... 36.00 per hour~~

~~3. School Districts ..... \$4.10 per lane/per hour ..... 23.00 per hour~~

~~D. Competitive Training Fees (Local and Regional Only):~~

~~1. Short Course and Dive Tank ..... \$3.60 per lane/per hour~~

~~2. Long Course ..... 8.80 per lane/per hour~~

3. Dive Board/Tower ..... 19.75 per lane/per hour

4. Water Polo/Synchronized Swim ..... 19.75 per hour

1 E. Competition Fees (Local and Regional Only):

1. Short Course and Dive Tank ..... \$36.00 per hour

2. Long Course ..... 42.00 per hour

2 F. Pass Program (Pass good at all King County Swimming Pools):

3 1. Instructional Pool - Three Month Pass

Family, 2 or more ..... \$110.00 plus sales tax

Adults, 18 years or older ..... 74.25 plus sales tax

Senior Citizens, 60 years or older ..... 46.20 plus sales tax

Youth, 17 years or younger ..... 46.20 plus sales tax

4 G. Locker Fees ..... \$0.25 per locker

5 H.) Meeting ((R))room ((R))rental ..... \$((17.75))19.50 -

6 ..... 23.00 per hour

7 Lobby((C)) and concourse ((R))rental ..... \$((35.50))39.00 -

8 ..... 43.00 per hour .

9 ((I. Individuals with physical or developmental disabilities shall receive the same  
10 rate as senior citizens.

11 J. Individuals with physical or developmental disabilities shall provide documented  
12 proof of disability to qualify for reduced fees.

13 K.)B. State((N)), national and ((I))international ((E))events

14 Fee to be determined through negotiated contract

1 ((L))C. Admission ((and/))or ((C))concession

2 ((F))fees, or both.....Fees to be negotiated

3 by contract - minimum

4 10((%)) percent of

5 gross revenue

6 ((M))D. Special ((A))admission ((F))fees ((-F)): fees to be determined by  
7 department director for special programs and promotions.

8 E. Conference facility

9 1. Entire facility, per day, includes set-up .....\$1,800.00 - 2,100.00

10 2. Damage deposit .....\$110.00 - 900.00

11 3. Cleaning fee .....\$110.00 - 120.00

12 4. Large meeting room, per day .....\$700.00 - 1,000.00

13 5. Large meeting room, per hour, two hour minimum.....\$72.00 - 86.00

14 F. Fee waivers: the department director or the director's designee may waive or  
15 reduce any fees under this section.

16 SECTION 5. A. Section 6 of this ordinance proposes changes in the fees currently  
17 charged for the King County fair.

18 B. These fees are assessed pursuant to K.C.C. chapter 2.99 and K.C.C. 2.99.010,  
19 which grant authority of county agencies to establish county policies and procedures to set,  
20 charge and collect fees.

21 C. Adjustments to the current fee charges for King County recreational facilities  
22 are warranted due to increased demand, more frequent maintenance demands and general  
23 inflationary trends.

1 SECTION 6. Ordinance 5225, Section 2(B), as amended, and K.C.C. 7.08.030 are  
2 hereby amended to read as follows:

3 King County ~~((F))~~fair. King County ~~((F))~~fair fees shall be:

4 A. Gate admittance~~((+))~~: \$3.00 - 7.50, depending on age.

<del>((Adults, 16 years or older</del> .....	<del>\$6.50</del>
<del>Adults, half price days</del> .....	<del>3.25</del>
<del>Children, 6 years to 15 years</del> .....	<del>3.00</del>
<del>Children, half price days</del> .....	<del>1.50</del>
<del>Senior citizens, 62 years or older</del> .....	<del>4.50</del>
<del>Senior citizens, half price days</del> .....	<del>2.25))</del>

5 B. Rodeo ~~((&))~~ and ~~((E))~~entertainment ~~((A))~~admission: \$2.75 - 7.00, depending on  
6 age.

<del>((Rodeo - Adults</del> .....	<del>\$3.50</del>
<del>Rodeo - Children/Youth</del> .....	<del>2.50</del>
<del>Entertainment - Reserved Seating</del> .....	<del>6.00</del>
<del>Entertainment - Regular Seating</del> .....	<del>4.00))</del>

7 C. Parking: \$3.50 - 6.00 per day, includes tax.

<del>((Regular</del> .....	<del>\$3.50 per day (includes tax)</del>
<del>4-H/FFA/Commercial exhibitors</del> .....	<del>\$3.50 per day (includes tax))</del>

8 D. Camping: \$4.50 - 17.00, depending on type of camper - 4-H, FFA, or general  
9 public.

<del>((4-H/FFA exhibitors</del> .....	<del>\$4.00 per day (includes tax)</del>
---------------------------------------	--



~~Commercial exhibitors ..... \$6.00 per day (includes tax))~~

1 E. Bed and ((F))feed: \$3.00 - 4.00 per exhibitor.

~~((4 H/FFA exhibitors ..... \$3.00 per exhibitor))~~

2 F. Fieldhouse use fee, entire facility: \$250.00 - 450.00 per day.

3 SECTION 7. A. Section 8 of this ordinance proposes changes in the fees currently  
4 charged for recreation services.

5 B. These fees are assessed pursuant to K.C.C. chapter 2.99 and K.C.C. 2.99.010,  
6 which grant authority of county agencies to establish county policies and procedures to set,  
7 charge and collect fees.

8 C. Adjustments to the current fee charges for King County recreational facilities  
9 are warranted due to increased demand, more frequent maintenance demands and general  
10 inflationary trends.

11 SECTION 8. Ordinance 6027, Sections 2 and 3, as amended, and K.C.C. 7.08.040 are  
12 hereby amended to read as follows:

13 **Recreation services.** Recreation services fees shall be:

14 A. Fee structured program:

15 1. Class(~~(W)~~) or workshop ((F))fees ((R))range: \$5.00 to \$((~~200.00~~))230.00 per  
16 class(~~(/)~~) or workshop, depending on the type of program, cost of instruction, location and  
17 number of sessions.

18 2. Adult ((D))drop ((I))in ((P))program ((F))fees: Range \$1.00 to \$((~~5.00~~))6.00  
19 per session, depending on type of program and location.

20 3. King County ((S))sponsored ((L))league ((&T)) and tournament ((F))fees ((/)),  
21 includes cost of officials, awards, equipment, facility rentals, administration fees and

1 association fees for organized teams and individual sports including softball, basketball,  
2 soccer, volleyball, racquetball, etc.((~~3~~)):

- a. Leagues ..... \$((~~25~~-\$1000))30.00 -  
\$1,145.00 per team((~~6~~)) or  
league, depending on the  
number of games and cost  
of officials
- b. Tournaments ..... \$((~~50~~-\$300))55.00 - 345.00  
per team, depending on the  
number of games and type  
of sport
- c. Individual sports ..... \$((~~5~~-\$100))5.50 - 115.00  
per participant, depending  
on the number of sessions,  
hours and cost of  
instruction

3 A ten percent administrative surcharge not to exceed \$5.00 ((~~will~~)) shall be assessed per  
4 participant per registration on the class or event cost for all fee structured classes, special  
5 events, athletic fee programs, workshops, special events or seminars. This administrative  
6 cost ((~~will~~)) may not be charged for regularly scheduled programs or events ((~~which~~)) that  
7 are intended solely for the enjoyment of citizens ((~~55~~)) sixty-two years or older.

8 B.Field usage fees:

1. ~~((Baseball/Softball fields~~

<del>a. Adult .....</del>	<del>\$25.00 per game</del>
<del>b. Youth .....</del>	<del>3.00 per game</del>
<del>c. Seniors 55 or Older .....</del>	<del>Free</del>
<del>Adult Practice fields .....</del>	<del>\$6.00 per practice</del>

1

2. Soccer and Other Field Sports

a. Adult .....	\$25.00 per game
b. Youth .....	3.00 per game
Adult Practice fields .....	\$6.00 per practice

2

3. Tournament Field Rental Fee

3

a. Adult ..... \$22.00 per game

4

b. Youth ..... 11.00 per game

5

Tournament Field Cancellation Fee ..... 5.00 per game

6

4.) \$2.50 - \$35.00 per practice or game, depending on age of participants and

7

whether a practice or game.

8

2. Athletic field lights: ~~\$(10.00)~~ 11.00 - 12.00 per hour, allows adjustment for

9

utility cost increases.

~~((5. Athletic field telephone reservation card .....~~ ~~\$20.00 per team~~  
per season

6. Field Reservation Form Processing Fee

Under 75 games/practices ..... \$10.00

75-200 games/practices ..... 20.00

~~200+ games/practices~~ ..... 50.00

1 ~~7.)~~C. Admission (~~and~~) or concession (~~F~~) fees, or both: (~~20%~~) fees to be  
2 negotiated by contract - minimum ten percent of gross revenue.

3 ~~((will assess 20% to gross revenue collected by renter from~~  
4 ~~admission/participant fees and/or sale of goods and/or services))~~

5 ~~8. Fort Dent Park: All users, except seniors 55 or older, pay the same rate for this~~  
6 ~~facility.~~

7 ~~a. Baseball/Softball/Soccer/Football Fields~~

~~(1) Adult ..... \$33.00 per game (includes lights)~~

~~(2) Seniors 55 or older ..... Free~~

~~(3) Adult Tournament ..... \$33.00 per game (includes lights)~~

8 ~~b. Cricket Field~~

~~(1) Adult ..... \$25.00 per game~~

~~c. Baseball/Softball Control Tower ..... \$2.00 per game))~~

9 D. Special athletic requests, varies with type of facility, set-up time:

~~((d))~~1. Fence rental ..... ~~\$((120.00))~~ 132.00 - 150.00

~~((e))~~2. Pitcher's mound installation ..... ~~\$((350.00))~~ 385.00 - 400.00

10 ~~((G))~~E. Facilities (~~U~~) usage: (~~I~~) indoors and (~~O~~) outdoors:

11 1. ~~((Activity Centers and))~~ Community (~~C~~) centers:

12 Includes meetings or activities that are promoted, organized, managed,  
13 supervised and sponsored by civic or nonprofit organizations such as  
14 community clubs, (~~O~~) orthopedic (~~G~~) guilds, service clubs, public agency  
15 programs(~~,~~) and public meetings. If the activity under sponsorship is open

1 and free to the public and ~~((conforms to the rules of the activity community~~  
2 ~~program hours, the charge is \$2.50 per hour.))~~ occurs during staffed building  
3 hours, there is no charge.

4 2. Activity ~~((C))~~centers and ~~((C))~~community ~~((C))~~centers ~~((f))~~, nonprogram  
5 hours~~((f))~~.~~((f))~~ For any organizations, groups and clubs, using an activity or community  
6 center during nonprogram hours, or a community center at any time during the day or  
7 evening, the following fee schedule ~~((will))~~ shall be applied.~~((f))~~:

Gymnasium fee or meeting room fee... \$~~((22.00))~~18.00 - 30.00 per hour,  
~~((f))~~2 hour minimum~~((f))~~,  
depending on the size of the facility  
and type of meeting

~~((Meeting room fee ..... \$16.50 per hour (2 hour minimum))~~

8 ~~3. Kitchen Use Fee (All facilities except Clise Mansion)~~

9 ~~(Facility users will not be assessed a kitchen fee to obtain water for coffee~~  
10 ~~pots).~~

~~Kitchen use fee ..... \$5.50 per hour (2 hour minimum)~~

11 ~~in conjunction with the rental of another room.~~

12 ~~4.)~~3. Gold Creek ~~((L))~~lodge ~~((U))~~use ~~((F))~~fee. ~~((f))~~Rate includes use of  
13 ~~((K))~~kitchen~~((f))~~:

Meeting ~~((R))~~room~~((f))~~ ..... \$~~((16.50))~~18.00 - 20.00 per hour,  
~~((f))~~2 hour minimum~~((f))~~

Overnight ~~((R))~~rate~~((f))~~..... \$125.00 - 255.00 per night,

depending on the age of participants and type of activity

~~((Youth Groups ..... \$110.00 per night~~

~~Adult Groups ..... 220.00 per night~~

1 ~~5. Clise Mansion Use Fees~~

2 ~~a. Rental of entire mansion except kitchen and museum:~~

~~Friday - Sunday ..... \$330/2-6 hours inclusive~~

~~Monday - Thursday, \$16.50 flat fee in conjunction with the rental of another room~~

3 ~~b. Rental of individual meeting rooms~~

4 ~~(Monday through Thursday only) ..... \$16.50/hour, (2 hour minimum)~~

5 ~~c. Rental of catering kitchen~~

6 ~~Friday - Sunday ..... \$55 flat fee~~

7 ~~Monday - Thursday ..\$16.50 flat fee in conjunction with rental of another room.~~

8 ~~(Facility users will not be assessed a kitchen fee to obtain water for coffee pots).~~

11 ~~6.)4. Lake Wilderness ((C))center~~

12 ~~a. Rental of entire ((C))center ((except meeting rooms and kitchen:~~

13 ~~Friday - Sunday (2-6 hours inclusive) ..... \$500.00~~

14 ~~Monday - Thursday (2 hour minimum) ..... \$60.00/hour)), 2 - 6~~

15 ~~hours inclusive: \$700.00 - 800.00, depending on the day of the week and season, plus~~

16 ~~\$65.00 - 75.00 per hour for additional hours.~~

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12

b. Rental of individual meeting rooms, per hour, 2 hour minimum:

~~((Two hour minimum ..... \$18.00/hour))~~ \$20.00 - 90.00,

depending on the day of the week and season

c. ~~((Rental of catering kitchen:~~

~~.....~~ Friday - Sunday ..... \$60.00 flat fee

~~.....~~ Monday - Thursday ..... \$18.00 flat fee

~~.....~~ d.) Conference ~~((B))~~ or banquet amenities ~~((C))~~, which are punchbowls, microphone, etc. ~~((D))~~ range from ~~\$\$\$5.00 to \$50.00~~ 6.00 - 100.00.

~~((Z))~~ 5. Outdoor ~~((F))~~ facility ~~((L))~~ use ~~((E))~~ fee. ~~((G))~~ Any groups, not exceeding 200 participants, renting outdoor facilities for activities including, but not limited to, dog shows, outdoor weddings, day camps, ~~((H))~~ fun ~~((R))~~ runs and organized picnics ~~((will))~~ shall pay according to the following fee schedule ~~((I))~~:

Group rate..... \$55.00 - 150.00 per day, depending on the location, day of the week and size of the group

Groups of over 200 must negotiate a special use permit

~~((1 - 100 participants ..... \$45.00 per day~~

~~.....~~ Monday-Friday, \$55.00 per day Saturday-Sunday

~~.....~~ 101 + participants ..... \$0.40 per participant per day

~~.....~~ 8. Reservation Form Handling Fee

13336

All groups will be assessed a \$5.00 processing fee per Reservation Form.

1

9.))6. Admission ((and))or ((C))concession ((F))fees  
 , or-both ..... ((20%)) Fees to be  
 negotiated by  
 contract - minimum  
 10 percent of gross  
 revenue

2

3

((will assess 20% of gross revenue collected by renter from  
 admission/participant fees and/or sales of goods and/or services.))

4

10.))7. Special ((F))facility ((L))use ((F))fee  
 Luther Burbank ((A))amphitheater ..... \$((22.00))24.00 - 27.00 per hour, 2  
 hour minimum  
 Racquetball ((C))courts - White Center ((P))park ..... \$((6.00))7.00 -  
 9.00 per hour  
 Dance((F))and fitness ((S))studio ((R))rehearsal ((S))space:  
 Dance ((P))program ((H))hours ..... \$((8.00))9.00 - 10.00 per hour  
 ((€))<sub>1</sub> hour minimum((€))  
 During ((N))nonprogram ((H))hours..... \$((18.00))20.00 - 21.00 per hour  
 ((€))<sub>2</sub> 2 hour minimum((€))

((11.))8. Camping ((F))fee ..... \$((10.00))15.00 - 17.00 per  
 site ((€))<sub>2</sub> includes tax((€)) -  
 includes one vehicle, each



additional vehicle

\$~~((5.00))~~ 6.00 unless vehicle

towed with ~~((R.V.))~~

recreational vehicle

~~((12.))~~ 9. Public ~~((E))~~ event ~~((P))~~ parking

~~((F))~~ fee

\$~~((2.00 - \$5.00))~~ 3.00 - 6.00 per car

~~((C))~~ c, depending on event and facility,

includes tax~~((T))~~

~~((13.))~~ 10. Pea ~~((P))~~ patch ~~((R))~~ rental .....

\$~~((30.00))~~ 33.00 -

35.00 per plot per

Each additional plot .....

season

\$~~((20.00))~~ 22.00 -

23.00 per plot per

season

~~((14.))~~ 11. Detector permits .....

\$~~((12.00))~~ 13.00 - 21.00 per

year ~~((per individual~~

~~18.00 per year per family (4 maximum)))~~

~~((15.))~~ 12. Special ~~((U))~~ use ~~((P))~~ permits

Groups renting facilities for special event activities shall pay fees determined

through negotiated contract.

~~((16.))~~ 13. Power ~~((F))~~ fees, ~~((D))~~ damage and ~~((K))~~ key ~~((D))~~ deposits

1  
2  
3

For any organizations, groups, or clubs using ~~((an activity center or community center))~~ a property, power fees and a damage and key deposit fee may be assessed according to the following schedule:

Power fees ..... \$~~((10.00 to \$25.00))~~ 11.00 - 30.00  
per day, depending on type of activity and hours of use

Damage deposit ..... \$~~((25.00 to \$250.00 (determined by type of activity and number or participants)))~~ 27.50 - 300.00,  
depending on type of activity and hours of use

Key deposit ..... \$~~((25.00 to \$200.00 (determined by type of activity and numbers of participants)))~~ 27.50 - 300.00,  
depending on type of activity and hours of use

4  
5

~~((17))~~ 14. Overnight ((B))boat - ((M))moorage ((F))fees,  
per night..... \$9.00 - 13.00

~~((For boats 26 feet in length and over ..... \$11.00 per night~~  
~~For boats under 26 feet in length ..... \$8.00 per night))~~

6  
7

F. Fee waivers: the department director or the director's designee may waive or reduce any fees under this section.

1 G. Permit application fee: \$135.00 - 1,000.00, depending on staff time required to  
2 process application.

3 SECTION 9. This ordinance takes effect January 1, 1999.

4 SECTION 10. Direction to the clerk. The clerk is given direction to edit and revise  
5 this ordinance to the extent deemed necessary or desirable by the clerk and without changing  
6 the meaning of any such law, in the following respects only:

- 7 A. Make capitalization uniform with that followed generally by the state.
- 8 B. Make chapter or section division and subdivision designations uniform with that  
9 followed in the code.
- 10 C. Substitute for the term "this ordinance," where necessary, the term "section,"  
11 "part," "code," "chapter," or "title," or reference to specific section or chapter numbers, as the  
12 case may require.
- 13 D. Substitute for reference to a section of "this ordinance," the proper code section  
14 number reference.
- 15 E. Strike out figures where merely a repetition of written words and substitute, where  
16 deemed advisable for uniformity, written words for figures.
- 17 F. Rearrange any misplaced statutory material, incorporate any omitted statutory  
18 material as well as correct manifest errors in spelling, and manifest clerical or typographical  
19 errors, or errors by way of additions or omissions.
- 20 G. Correct manifest errors in references, by chapter or section number, to other code.
- 21 H. Correct manifest errors or omissions in numbering or renumbering sections of the  
22 code.

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25

I. Divide long sections into two or more sections, and rearrange the order of sections to conform to such logical arrangement of subject matter as may most generally be followed in the code when to do so will not change the meaning or effect of such sections.

J. Change the wording of section captions, if any, and provide captions to new chapters and sections.

K. Strike provisions manifestly obsolete.

INTRODUCED AND READ for the first time this \_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 1998.

PASSED by a vote of 7 to 6 on this 23<sup>rd</sup> day of NOVEMBER, 1998.

KING COUNTY, COUNCIL  
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON

Louise Miller  
Chair

ATTEST:

[Signature]  
Clerk of the Council

APPROVED this 4 day of December, 1998.

[Signature]  
King County Executive

Attachments: None